




City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes March 9, 2016 
 

  

City of Colfax 
City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Wednesday, March 9, 2016 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CONVENE CLOSED SESSION 
 

1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Parnham called the meeting to order at 6:32PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 

No public comment 
Mayor Parnham recused himself from the Closed Session. 

1D. Closed session agenda 

Conference with Labor Negotiators pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Employee Organization: General Employees and Bargaining Unit Represented by 
Operation Engineers, Local 39 
City’s Designated Representative:  Mark Miller 

Closed session ended at 6:58PM. 
 

2 CONVENE OPEN SESSION 
 

2A. Call to Order 
Mayor Parnham called the Open Session to order at 7:04PM. 

2B. Pledge of Allegiance 
City Attorney Cabral led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2C. Report from Closed Session 
City Attorney Cabral stated there was nothing to report from Closed Session. 

2D. Roll Call 
Council Members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, the City 
Council approved the agenda. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

3A. Minutes City Council Meeting of February 24, 2016 
Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 24, 2016. 

3B. Current Contract List 
Recommendation:  For information only. 
Councilmember Hesch pulled Item 3B for discussion. 
On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Stockwin, the City 
Council approved the Minutes of the February 24, 2016 meeting. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

ITEM 3A
1 of 5



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes March 9, 2016 
 

Item 3B:  Councilmember Hesch expressed appreciation for the Contract report, 
mentioning he found it very interesting and would like to see the contract prices on the 
list.  He suggested staff consider including a column for dollar values. 

 

4 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
 

4A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 
Councilmember Hesch 

 Councilmember Hesch offered appreciation to Councilmember Stockwin for his 
well-documented research and interaction with the railroad regarding idling 
trains.  The information and documentation was invaluable for submitting an 
effective formal complaint to the Placer County Air Pollution Control Board. 

 On a recent trip to Oregon, he observed and asked questions regarding the 
marijuana dispensaries, which were recently legalized in that state.  He was 
impressed to see several small businesses opening up with no observable 
problems.  He committed to continue to monitor the events and feedback from 
Oregon. 

 Councilmember Hesch requested Council discussion concerning the proposed dam 
on the Bear River and a Council letter to the Nevada Irrigation District (NID). 
Mayor Pro Tem Harvey concurred that Council should comment and since the dam 
will impact the City, request benefits for the City. 
City Manager Miller informed Council that staff has arranged for a presentation 
from NID at the next Council meeting. 

Councilmember Stockwin 
 Councilmember Stockwin noted the Nevada Irrigation District (NID) has extended 

their deadline to comment on the Environmental Impact Review process for the 
proposed dam on the Bear River to April 16, 2016.  He suggested everyone look at 
both sides of the issue by studying the websites promoting the dam and opposed 
to it: www.centennialreservoir.org and www.savebearriver.com. 

 He reported the railroad is clearing land uphill and temporarily storing the slash 
near town.  The wood is available for cutting and the remainder to be donated to 
the biomass plant by April. 

Councilmember Douglass 
 Councilmember Douglass attended the Sierra Economic Development Corporation 

(SEDCorp) Board meeting.  SEDCorp is supporting Assembly Bill 1758 which will 
provide funding for broadband services in rural areas. 

 Council is now sponsoring the Colfax Elementary School awards program called 
Hardwork Café.  He and Mayor Parnham joined the students in celebrating their 
academic success. 

 As liaison to the Colfax schools, he attended a recent girls’ soccer game.  Colfax 
triumphed over Nevada Union, a school twice their size. 

Mayor Pro Tem Harvey 
 Mayor Pro Tem Harvey mentioned an article in Western City regarding sign laws.  

He asked staff to follow up to insure that the City sign ordinance is in compliance. 
City Manager Miller stated the City planner has looked at the City’s ordinance and 
the City may need a zoning code update which can include any changes needed. 
 

ITEM 3A
2 of 5

http://www.centennialreservoir.org/
http://www.savebearriver.com/


City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes March 9, 2016 
 

 
Mayor Parnham 

 Mayor Parnham requested Council move regular meetings to Tuesday nights 
allowing the reporter to meet the deadline to have articles in the same week’s 
publication.  Articles from a Wednesday night meeting cannot be in the paper until 
the following week.   He asked staff to place a discussion item on the agenda.  

 He mentioned that there are many comments on Facebook stating a preference for 
the train horns to recommence. 

 He will not be able to attend a League of California Cities meeting on March 18th 
and asked that another Councilmember take his place.  Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, the 
alternate, will plan to attend. 

 He enjoyed presenting the awards to the 7th graders at Colfax Elementary School to 
celebrate their accomplishments. 
 

4B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Miller  

 City Manager Miller stated Colfax had six inches of rainfall in the last storm with 
few fallen trees or storm drain issues.  Staff is gearing up for another large storm 
this weekend. 

 The theater owner reported an opportunity to partner with a foreign film festival 
promoter.  A film festival would be a boon to the local economy.  

 He attended a Placer County Transportation Planning Agency (PCTPA) Technical 
Advisory Committee meeting this week.  PCTPA seems to be getting traction for 
their tax initiative which would add over $250,000 annually to the City 
transportation budget and have a major impact on City road improvements. 

 The Colfax Garden Club planted a tree for Arbor Day with essay competition 
winners from the school.  There is room at the location for a monument or bench, 
as Council sees fit. Council might consider a line item for a Wyman Wayside 
monument in the upcoming budget planning process. 

 He encouraged attendance at the March 12th fundraiser for the 8th grade class 
which is hosting a car show to be held in Meadow Vista.  

 Staff is working on the bidding process for the Oak Street sidewalk grant project 
and hopes to bring a bid back to Council soon. 

 Sergeant Conners is unable to attend tonight’s meeting as he is preparing for an 
exercise in the morning.  He suggested Council look at the recent ordinances 
passed by Placer County as templates for Council to consider in efforts to decrease 
loitering by indigents within City limits. 
 

4C. Additonal Reports – Agency Partners 
Chris Nave, California Highway Patrol (CHP) Gold Run Area Public Information Officer 

 He will teach a Start Smart class for teen driving safety at Empire Driving School on 
March 12th from 9AM to 11AM.  The class is free. 

 Also on March 12th, the CHP is conducting a statewide bone marrow donor drive 
for the Keith Meter Fund.  CHP is asking for everyone to participate. 

 Officer Nave will conduct a Bike Rodeo during school hours at Colfax Elementary 
School on April 1st. 
 

ITEM 3A
3 of 5



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes March 9, 2016 
 

Frank Klein, President of the Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce  
 At a recent Chamber Board meeting, the board discussed the July 3rd event and the 

Railroad Days event.  The Chamber would like Council’s direction regarding 
fireworks at the July 3rd event and requested Council add a discussion regarding 
this to a future agenda. 

Forrest Rowell, Colfax City Volunteer Fire Department Administrative Fire Captain  
 He is working with the Volunteer Fire Department to improve the Insurance 

Services Office (ISO) rating for the City. 
 The Department is actively recruiting and has added 4 volunteers in the past 

month.  The goal is to have enough volunteers to run 2 engines. 
Mayor Pro Tem Harvey suggested coordinating with the Colfax Record to increase 
public awareness of the need for more volunteers. 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Tim Ryan, 300 S Main Street 

 Thanked Staff for the excellent clean-up of Main Street. 
 Mentioned his appreciation for the Quiet Zone.  The reduction in train noises has 

improved his life. 
Stacie Younggren, area resident 

 Responded to Councilmember Hesch’s report regarding marijuana dispensaries in 
Oregon, informing him marijuana has been legalized in Oregon for six months. 

 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

6A. Update on Revised MOU for Local 39 Union Employees 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review update on negotiations from City Manager. 
City Manager Miller explained staff and the union representative have made progress 
over the last few months.  Staff hopes to bring back an agreement for the Consent 
Calendar which will control costs and acknowledge staff with reasonable compensation. 
 

6B. Medical Marijuana Regulation – Continuing City Council Discussion 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss and direct staff as appropriate. 
City Manager Miller commented staff was able to include most of Council’s input into this 
rough draft ordinance proposal.  Staff is presenting only the “cultivation” portion of the 
ordinance for Council discussion tonight. 
Councilmember Hesch had no comment on the proposed ordinance. 
Councilmember Stockwin expressed concern with some vague language in the document; 
terms such as “other similar locations, large number of kids” should be defined or 
removed.  Also, the draft ordinance requires a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for 
cultivation.  Since the CUP process is very public, it will conflict with the state law that 
application for medical marijuana cultivation is covered by right to privacy laws.  Making 
the CUP process private will need to be addressed.  The proposed ordinance doesn’t 
increase the threshold for the number of plants allowed for larger parcels.  The law allows 
a caregiver to provide for up to 5 patients, but the ordinance only allows four plants.  This 
wouldn’t be enough for 5 people. 

ITEM 3A
4 of 5







ITEM 3B
2 of 11







ITEM 3B
5 of 11



ITEM 3B



ITEM 3B
7 of 11





ITEM 3B



ITEM 3B
10 of 11



ITEM 3B
11 of 11



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE MARCH 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Staff  

DATE: March 17, 2016 

SUBJECT: Updated Memorandum of Understanding with the Stationary Engineers Union Local 39 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED 
AMOUNT:  Future costs 2% -4% 

CPI Salary Increases 

FROM FUND:  Multiple, 
Wastewater and General 

Fund 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution No. 08-2016, authorizing the Mayor and City Manager to execute the 
updated Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Colfax and IOUE, Stationary Engineers, Local 39 Representing 
General Employees January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
The City has five employees represented by Union Local 39.  The City and Local 39 have been negotiating for the past six months 
on updating the most recent Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), which had been in place from July 1, 2013 to December 31, 
2015.  The previous MOU covered the time period when the City transitioned from the very difficult economic recession to more 
stabilized revenues.  The represented employees have voted to ratify the updated MOU. 
 
The attached updated MOU reflects a number of changes in labor law, a cost of living indexed salary increase that enables the 
City to retain and attract quality employees, and a revised benefits package that is sustainable within Colfax limited revenue 
resources.  The major changes in the MOU include: 

 Annual cost of living salary scale increases indexed to inflation, with a minimum of 2% and a maximum of 4%. 

 Elimination of City paid PERS retirement employee contribution portion for new employees, and phasing out with salary 
offset for existing employees, to reflect movement of public agencies away from paying employee PERS contribution 
amount. 

 Phased in elimination of City payment to the Union Health and Welfare program to provide employee choice and 
reduce City costs. 

 Phased in Employee contribution to Health Benefit costs, with the City making a fixed, decreasing cap, and with an in-
lieu amount to be paid to employees who have alternate coverage. 

 OIT program to continue subject to operational needs and time limits.  

 Boot allowance increase from $200 to $275 (also allows use for work jackets).   

 Term of Agreement extends to June 30, 2020 coinciding with City budget timeline. 

 Personal vehicle mileage reimbursement with City Authorization only, per IRS rates. 

 Voluntary leave Donation Program for employees granting to fellow employees. 

 Performance Pay incentive for top step, top performing employees with City Determination. 

 Formalized end to labor disagreements 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Review the updated Memorandum of Understanding and approve Resolution No. 08-2016, authorizing the Mayor and City 
Manager to execute the updated MOU with the Union Local 39. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 08-2016 
2. Final MOU Document with Appendixes 

 

1 of 28



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 08-2016 
 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF COLFAX AND 
IUOE, STATIONARY ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39 REPRESENTING GENERAL UNIT 

EMPLOYEES JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2020  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax (City) and the International Union of Operation 

Engineers, Stationary Engineers Local 39 (Union), through their duly authorized 
representatives, negotiated a Memorandum Of Understanding (MOU), a copy of which is 
attached to this Resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax has determined that approval of the 
MOU is in the best interest of the City and its employees 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that 

the Mayor and the City Manager are authorized to execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City and IOUE, Stationary Engineers, Local 39 effective through 
June 30, 2020, in the form attached to this Resolution. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Colfax held on the 23rd day of March, 2016 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Tom Parnham, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 
 

2 of 28



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

Between  

 

CITY OF COLFAX 

And 

IUOE, STATIONARY ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39 

REPRESENTING GENERAL UNIT EMPLOYEES 

 

 

JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH June 30, 2020 

 

3 of 28





 

 3 

 

PREAMBLE 
 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into pursuant to the Meyers-Milias-

Brown Act, by and between the City Manager of the CITY OF COLFAX and I.U.O.E. 

STATIONARY ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39 (Union) the first day of January 1, 2016.   

 

 The parties have met and conferred in good faith regarding wages, hours and other items and 

conditions of employment of the represented employees of the City of Colfax and have 

exchanged freely information, opinions and proposals and have endeavored to reach agreement 

on all matters relating to the employment conditions and employer-employee relations of such 

employees.  

 

 The MOU shall be presented to the City Council as the joint recommendations of the 

undersigned for salaries, fringe benefits and working conditions of all represented employees of 

the City of Colfax. 

 

 The MOU and following agreements shall not become effective until approved by the Colfax 

City Council and I.U.O.E. Stationary Engineers, Local 39. 

 

 

ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION 

    

 The City hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative for all employees in the 

General Bargaining Unit, as defined in Appendix “A” (attached) of this agreement, and agrees to 

meet and confer and otherwise deal exclusively with the Union on all matters relating to the 

scope of representation pertaining to hours, wages, and conditions of employment of said 

employees as authorized by law. 

 

 

ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 

A. Term:  This 4 ½ year agreement shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2020. 

 

B. Procedure for Meet and Confer:  The City, through its representatives, shall meet and 

confer in good faith with representatives of the Union regarding matters within the scope 

of representation, including wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment, 

in accordance with the provisions of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act. 

 

 

ARTICLE 3: UNION RIGHTS  

 

The Union has the right to represent its members before the City Council or advisory boards or 

commissions or the City Manager or his designee with regard to wages, hours and conditions of 

employment or other matters within the scope of representation. Employees represented by the 

5 of 28



 

 4 

Union shall be free to participate in Union activities without interference, intimidation, or 

discrimination, in accordance with State law and City policies, rules and regulations. 

 

Union shall have the following rights: 

 

A. Union Access 

Union shall have access to bargaining unit members outside of their assigned duties; 

before and after work hours, at meal and break periods, without prior notice. 

 

B. Bulletin Boards 

Union may use bulletin boards designated for its use in appropriate places.  All items to 

be posted shall be officially authorized by Union, and shall bear the date of posting 

 

C. Use of Facilities 

The City Manager, upon request, may permit the Union to use designated facilities, 

depending upon availability of space, for meeting purposes. No request for use of City 

facilities shall be unreasonably denied.  

 

D. Agency Shop / Fair Share Fee 

The Union owes the same responsibilities to all employees in the represented Unit and 

has a duty to provide fair and equal representation to all employees in all classes in the 

Unit whether or not they are members of Union, in accordance with Government Code 

Section 3500. 

 

Union Dues, Initiation and Agency Fees: The Employer upon  receiving notice             

from the Union will make a single deduction of an initiation fee from newly hired 

employees who choose to become Union members and deduct one month’s current 

periodic Union dues or Agency fees based upon a uniform dues schedule from the pay of 

each Union employee. 

  

 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 3502.5(b), all current regular employees and all 

new employees in the General Bargaining Unit represented by Union shall, as a condition 

of employment, authorize payroll deductions beginning the first pay period of the month 

of employment or assignment to General Bargaining Unit for the payment of dues owing 

from one of the following: 

 

- Become a member of the Union and pay dues; or 

- Pay to the Union a fair share fee. 

 

The Union shall defend, indemnify and hold the City harmless against any and all claims, 

demands, expenses, suits, orders, judgments or other forms of liability that shall arise out 

of or by reason of action taken by the City under this article. 

 

 

 





 

 6 

 

 

ARTICLE 4: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 

A. The rights of the City include, but are not limited to, the exclusive right to determine the 

mission of its constituent departments, commissions and boards; set standards of service 

and; determine the procedures and standards of selection for employment and promotion; 

train and direct its employees; take disciplinary action; relieve its employees from duty 

because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons; maintain the efficiency of 

government operations; determine the methods, means and personnel by which 

governmental operations are to be conducted; determine the content of job classifications; 

take all necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; to exercise complete 

control and discretion over its organization and the technology of performing its work; 

and to make rules and regulations for its employees consistent with this MOU.  

 

B. The City maintains the right to use qualified volunteers or reserves in the City service, 

provided such use does not adversely affect wages, hours and other terms and conditions 

of employment of represented employees.  Use of said individuals shall be in accordance 

with State law and regulations.  

 

C. Nothing contained within the Article is intended to, in any way, supersede or infringe 

upon the rights of the recognized employee organization as provided under State and 

Federal law, including, but not limited to, California State Government Code Sections 

3500 through 3510, inclusive.  

 

 

ARTICLE 5: NO DISCRIMINATION 

 

There shall be no discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual 

preference or legitimate Union activities against any employee or application for employment by 

the City and to the extent prohibited by applicable State and Federal law, there shall be no 

discrimination because of age.  There shall be no discrimination against any handicapped person 

solely because of such handicap unless that handicap prevents the person from meeting the 

minimum standards established for the employment position the applicant seeks.  Nothing in this 

article shall in anyway change current case law regarding employer’s liability for discrimination 

nor shall it remove any defense currently or in the future with regard to employment 

discrimination. 

 

 

ARTICLE 6: SALARY  

 

A. Rates of Pay:  The City will provide salaries for all classifications as listed in Appendix A 

for the duration of this MOU.  Based on merit, employees will be eligible for further step 

increases to be effective on the anniversary date of their employment with the City of 

Colfax.  Once an employee reaches Step 5 of the new salary range, the employee will no 

longer be eligible to receive further merit step increases.  

8 of 28



 

 7 

 

B. Call Back Pay/Standby Pay:   

 

1. Call Back Pay:  When an employee is called to return to duty after completion of 

their normal scheduled shift, they shall be compensated a minimum of two hours 

at the rate of time and one half their normal rate of pay.  Any work performed 

beyond the initial two hours shall also be compensated at time and one half for 

actual hours worked. Should an emergency arise that requires a maintenance 

employee to be called out by either the City Manager or Community Services 

Director, the maintenance employee shall receive time and one half time from the 

time he leaves his house to the time he returns. 

 

2. Standby Pay:  Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators and Maintenance Workers 

will be required to be on standby outside of their normal working hours and will 

receive $2.50 for each hour of assigned standby time, as directed by the 

Community Services Director. Should a wastewater treatment plant or 

Maintenance Worker employee be called out, premium pay will be paid for those 

hours worked outside of normal eight-hour day.  

 

C. Cost of Living Adjustments:  

 

Cost of Living Adjustments will be provided to all bargaining unit members on July 1, 

2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019, based on an average of the two CPIs of San Francisco-

Oakland-San Jose Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers and United States City 

Average Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers, minimum 2%, maximum 4%. 

Averages will be based on April to March for the purposes of yearly City budgeting. 

 

 

D. Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators: 

 

Conditions:  Upon successful completion, the City shall pay for all out of pocket costs 

related to obtaining a Grade 2 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator’s license, including 

paid time off for required classes and testing required during normal work hours.  

 

E. Operator in Training Program. The parties agree to allow qualified employees to 

participate in the State’s Operator in Training (OIT) program subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

 The City shall: 

 

 a. Pay for approved schooling, including course materials 

 b. Provide travel compensation to and from schooling and testing locations. 

 c. Pay for certification and test. 

d. Allow adequate time working as an OIT to be qualified to become a Grade 1 

wastewater treatment plant operator. 

 



 

 8 

 

e. Pay employees regular salary for attending classes during their normal scheduled 

working hours. No over time will be paid for attending classes. 

 

 Employees participating in the OIT Program shall: 

 

 a. Study. 

 b. Submit requests for City approval of qualified courses. 

 c. Timely schedule and pass tests and qualify for certification. 

 d. Apply with regulatory agencies for needed extensions. 

 e. Keep management informed of progress. 

f. Track qualified hours and report their hours accomplished and needed to the City. 

 

F. Pay Differential for Acting Supervisor 

 

1.   When an employee is assigned to perform the significant duties of a supervisory 

position for relief necessitated by a temporary vacancy caused by the incumbent’s 

absence of more than five (5) continuous working days, said employee shall 

receive 5% differential pay with the approval of the supervisor and/or the City 

Manager.  

 

2.   The 5% differential shall cease when the absent incumbent returns to duty.  

 

G. Out of Class Pay: When an employee is assigned to do the work of a higher paid 

classification (excluding supervisory classifications), said employee will be paid 5% out 

of class pay for the entire pay period in which the out of class work is performed.  

 

H. Promotion: When an employee is promoted to a position with a higher salary range than 

the class from which he/she was promoted, the employee shall be appointed to that step 

in the higher salary range which will result in a minimum of a 5% salary increase.  

 

I. Certification Pay: Employees will receive an additional 5% above their base pay for 

approved job-related certifications above what is required in their job classification.  

Certification pay is capped at 10% for each employee.  In order to receive certificate pay, 

the employee must have the certificate program approved by his/her supervisor and have 

received a satisfactory performance rating. Certifications for pay are approved at the sole 

determination of the City and are subject to the operational needs of the City for 

continuance.  Operator pay will be paid for current Operators in Training for a total of 

three years while obtaining required hours.  Extensions may be provided at the discretion 

of the City. 

 

J. Extra Salary Adjustment for Outstanding Performance: The City Manager may adjust, at 

her/her discretion, the compensation of an employee by an additional 5% step based on 

the evaluation of the employee’s performance that indicates the employee has 

substantially exceeded performance standards and the City Manager concludes that the 

10 of 28



 

 9 

additional step is warranted.  The City Manager shall advise the Council of any such 

outstanding performance salary adjustments. 

 

J. Performance Pay at Top Step: Unit employees are eligible for an additional 3% 

performance pay after reaching the 5th step of the salary range, based on an overall rating 

of “Exceeds Expectation” checked on the current Performance Evaluation form.  

  

 

ARTICLE 7: OVERTIME 

 

A. Definition.  Authorized time of non-exempt employees worked in excess of either (8) 

hours per day and forty (40) hours in one (1) week shall constitute overtime.  Employees 

on paid status for vacation, CTO or holidays will not have such time count towards the 

40-hour calculation.  

 

B.   Policy.  It is the policy of the City of Colfax to keep overtime at a minimum consistent 

with the efficient operation of the City.  Overtime must be authorized by the Department 

Head in advance and be in compliance with the overtime policy as set forth in the City’s 

Personnel Rules and Regulations. 

 

C.   Overtime Pay.  Overtime shall be paid at the rate of pay of time and one half.  City may 

compensate for overtime by providing Compensatory Time Off (CTO) at the rate of time 

and one-half.  

 

D. Compensatory Time Off.  CTO time will be capped at 80 hours.  All future accrued CTO 

time over the new 80-hour cap will be paid out as overtime pay.  Existing accrued CTO 

banked hours will be “frozen” with no further hours accruing to that bank.  Newly 

accrued hours will be accrued separately in the new bank subject to the 80-hour cap.  An 

effort is to be made to reduce the frozen hours by scheduling time off with the 

employee’s supervisor. 

 

E. Employee Held Over After Conclusion Of Regular Work Shift: When an employee is 

held over after the conclusion of his/her regular work shift, the employee shall be paid at 

the rate of time and one-half (1 and ½) for hours worked in excess of his/her regular work 

shift. After 12 hours have elapsed from the start of the employee’s work day, an 

employee who is held over shall be paid at the rate of double time (2) until the employee 

is released from work for an uninterrupted rest period of eight (8) hours. 

 

F. Meal Reimbursement: If an employee is required to work four or more hours before or 

beyond his or her normal working day or on overtime for emergency purposes or for 

extended work periods of four or more hours in length on a day that is not the employee's 

regular work day, and the employee is not exercising flexible work hours, the employee 

shall be reimbursed for the actual cost of a meal not to exceed $18.00, tax and tip 

included. Reimbursement is contingent upon the employee providing receipts. 

11 of 28





 

 11 

 

ARTICLE 9: RETIREMENT PROGRAM  

 

A. Retirement Benefits: 

 

 1. Employees designated as "local miscellaneous members" by the City are currently 

provided retirement benefits under the Public Employees Retirement System's 

Local Miscellaneous 2% at age 60 Formula.  

 

 2. Employees are also provided retirement benefits under Social Security. 

 

B. Retirement Contributions: 

 

 1. The City shall pay the employer contribution rate to the extent and limits required 

by the Public Employees' Retirement System and Social Security.  The City shall 

pay, on behalf of the employee 2% of the employee’s contribution to PERS. The 

employee will pay 5% of the 7% employee contribution rate. Effective January 1, 

2017, the City will discontinue the 2% Employee portion of the PERS 

contribution to the “Classic” PERS employees, and will add an additional 2% to 

the salary schedule of the “Classic” PERS employees to replace the 2% 

previously paid for the employee portion. 

 

2. The employee shall pay the full amount of the employee's contribution rate to 

Social Security. 

 

A. PEPRA Retirement Contributions: 

 

1. New Member Retirement Benefits: All employees hired after January 1, 2013 

shall fall under the Public Employee Pension Reform Act, AB340, of the 

California State Code. 

   

 

ARTICLE 10: HOLIDAYS 

 

A.   In accordance with Government Code and the City Personnel Rules and Regulations, the 

following holidays shall be observed by the City: 

 

  a) January 1
st
 

  b) The third Monday in January, (Martin Luther King Day) 

  c) One Floating Holiday instead of Lincoln’s Birthday 

  d) The third Monday in February 

  e) The last Monday in May (Memorial Day) 

  f) July 4
th

 

  g) The first Monday in September (Labor Day) 

  h) The second Monday in October (Columbus Day) 

  i) November 11
th

 (Veterans Day) 

13 of 28





 

 13 

 

ARTICLE 12: LEAVE WITH PAY  
 

 The following provide for leave with pay:  

 

A.   Military Service: Military leave shall be granted in accordance with State and 

Federal law. 

 

B.   Jury Duty: All employees occupying authorized regular positions shall be allowed 

to leave for jury duty upon presentation of jury notice to the department head or 

City Manager.  The employee shall receive full pay for the time served on the 

jury.  Monies received from the courts by the employee for jury duty will be 

deposited with the City of Colfax, with the exception of mileage reimbursement. 

 

B. Driver’s License Renewal: The City agrees that employees who are required as a 

condition of continued employment to maintain a valid California driver's license 

shall be granted up to three (3) hours paid time off for the purpose of completing 

the required Department of Motor Vehicle written exams. 

 

 

ARTICLE 13: VACATION 

 

All regular employees occupying a position shown in the Annual Salary Program become 

eligible for vacation leave with pay as shown below:  

 

A. Vacation Leave Accrual: Vacation leave with pay shall be credited to all 

employees at the following rates:  

 

First two years of service   10 days per year 

Beginning of year three through four  12 days per year 

Beginning of year five through nine  15 days per year 

Beginning of year ten through nineteen 20 days per year  

Beginning of year twenty and on  25 days per year 

 

B. Payment for Unused Vacation Time: When an employee terminates, fractional 

periods of vacation shall be calculated and credited to the employee’s account.  

Compensation will be at the employee’s hourly rate.  

 

C. Vacation Leave Accumulation:  

 

1.  Vacation credits are earned and shall vest for the prior year upon the 

anniversary date of the employee’s employment.  Except as set forth below, 

vacation credits must be used during the next succeeding year.  Accrued 

vacation credits may not be carried over from year to year without the prior 

approval of the City Council. 

 

15 of 28





 

 15 

schedule as follows: 10day/8hr. work schedule per pay period (hours in excess of a 

normal eight hour day will be calculated at overtime pay).  

 

C. Temporary Change in Schedule: An employee whose regular work shift is temporarily 

changed so that his/her shift starts between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. shall be 

paid an additional 5% differential unless such temporary change in schedule is the result 

of a mutually agreed upon flextime arrangement or the employee is working overtime. 

 

D. Work Assignments: The City shall give a ten-day written notice to an employee prior to a 

permanent change of assignment. 

 

E. Light Duty: As determined by the City, the City agrees to provide for light duty 

assignments. 

 

 

ARTICLE 16: SENIORITY 

 

The principals of City seniority shall apply in, but not limited to, the following: promotion, 

layoff, vacation request, shift and days off bidding, etc.  Provided, however, that due to the small 

size of the City workforce, strict application of seniority rules may be relaxed with respect to 

represented employees on a case-by-case basis after conferring with Union, if City can 

demonstrate a specific need to vary from seniority basis.  

 

 

ARTICLE 17: PROBATIONARY PERIOD 

 

All new regular City employees will serve a six (6) month probationary period.  During such 

probation an employee may be terminated for any reason and is not subject to the grievance 

procedure.  Providing that during the initial six-month period written evaluations are done at the 

three-month and six-month intervals, the city may extend the probationary period as determined 

by the employee’s supervisor two additional three (3)-month periods.  If extended, an evaluation 

will be conducted at each three month interval to determine possible fulltime status.  

Probationary period will not exceed one year. 

 

 

ARTICLE 18:  PERFORMANCE EVALUATION REVIEW   

 

A. Responsibility for Performance Appraisals: 

 

1. It shall be the responsibility of the Department Heads and the Departmental 

Supervisors to prepare a performance appraisal for each employee assigned to 

them. 

 

 

 

 



 

 16 

B. Frequency of Evaluations: 

 

1. Regular Employees - A written performance appraisal shall be prepared at least 

annually for all employees within thirty days of their salary anniversary date. 

 

2. Merit Increase - No merit increase approvals shall be implemented until the 

employee’s performance appraisal is completed with a satisfactory or better rating 

justifying the merit increase.  Employees who receive late evaluations that are 

satisfactory or above shall also receive retroactive pay back to their salary 

anniversary date. 

 

 

C. Review and Distribution of Evaluation 

 

1. Each performance appraisal shall be thoroughly discussed with the employee to 

point out areas of successful performance and areas that need improvement or 

which are unacceptable. Employees shall be encouraged to comment about their 

work performance in a written statement attached to the appraisal within ten (10) 

working days of the performance appraisal. 

 

2. The employee will be encouraged to sign the performance appraisal to 

acknowledge awareness of its contents and discussion of the appraisal with the 

evaluator. The employee shall be informed that his or her signature does not 

necessarily mean that the employee fully agrees with the contents of the report 

and the employee may so state on the report before signing. 

 

3. A copy of the final approved performance appraisal shall be provided to the 

employee. The original shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file. 

 

 

ARTICLE 19:  FILLING PERMANENT VACANCIES 

 

A. Whenever a vacancy occurs in a job assignment, the vacancy and duties of the position 

shall be posted for a period of ten (10) calendar days. Employees holding career status in 

the classification allocated to that position, and who are assigned to the particular 

operation in which the vacancy arises, may request to be reassigned to fill said vacancy. 

The City shall give first consideration to those employees making such requests before 

considering any other persons for the vacancy.  

 

B. In the event more than one qualified employee requests to fill said vacancy, the 

assignment shall be based on classification seniority (or in the case of a tie, highest 

position on the eligible list) provided relative experience and capability in performing the 

required job functions and relative disruptive effect on the established work schedule are 

equal as determined by the City. 

 

 





 

 18 

for payment in an amount not to exceed two hundred seventy five dollars ($275) 

annually.  This stipend may also be used for the purchase of work jackets. 

 

 

ARTICLE 23: HEALTH AND SAFETY 

 

A. Safety equipment is supplied by the City of Colfax to its personnel.  All employees shall 

possess and have immediately available for their use those items of safety equipment 

issued and which are described by City regulations.  Furthermore, the City agrees to 

provide and maintain a safe and healthy work environment. 

 

B. Inoculations: The City shall pay for all inoculations required by the State of California, or 

as required by the City. 

 

 

ARTICLE 24: TUITION RIEMBURSEMENT AND TRANINGS 

 

A. Tuition Reimbursement: The City shall reimburse employees up to $1500.00 per fiscal 

year for the expenses they have incurred for tuition and books in taking a City approved 

college or university level course. Only courses, which relate to the employee’s current 

position with the City or would prepare the employee for advancement within the career 

field, will be considered as eligible for tuition reimbursement. Reimbursement shall not 

be made until the employee submits documentation of expenses and successful 

completion of the course with a grade of “B” or better. In order to be eligible, an 

employee must submit a plan by May 1st for the upcoming budget year. Late requests 

may be approved at the discretion of the Department Head. 

 

B. Training Courses: Upon approval of the Department Head, employees may be authorized 

to attend job-related training programs during regular working hours. When the needs of 

the City services so require, the appointing authority may direct an employee to attend a 

meeting or conference as part of the professional training required for the position. When 

such attendance is authorized or directed, payment for training-related expenses shall be 

paid by the City in accordance with authorized travel expense reimbursement in Article 

28 B, Mileage Reimbursement, and shall be distinct from the compensation paid for time 

worked.     

 

 

ARTICLE 25: DISCIPLINARY ACTION  

 

The following procedure shall be adhered to for non-emergency suspension, discharges and 

disciplinary actions of regular represented employees:  

 

A.  Disciplinary Procedure: 

 

1.   The concerned employee shall be given written notice of the proposed action 

within seven (7) calendar days from the date the appointing authority becomes 

20 of 28



 

 19 

aware of an incident to take the appropriate disciplinary action.  Such written 

notice shall include a statement of the reasons why the disciplinary action is being 

proposed and shall include a copy of the changes being considered by City 

management in addition to a statement of employee rights appropriate to the 

preliminary notice. 

 

2.   The employee shall be shown the documents or materials upon which the 

disciplinary action is based; and if practical, he or she shall be supplied with a 

copy of those documents. 

 

3.   After being given a reasonable opportunity to review the documents and materials 

set forth in paragraphs 1 and 2, above, the employee shall, within ten (10) days, 

be given the right to respond, either orally or in writing (at the option of the 

employee), to the authority initially imposing discipline. 

 

4.   No discipline shall be imposed, other than emergency suspensions prior to the 

conclusion of the grievance procedure; and discipline then imposed shall be 

effective after that time. 

 

5.   Prior discipline may be considered in determining the appropriate level of 

discipline in the administration and enforcement of City work rules, and is not 

subject to the written notice requirement in Article 20 (A) 1 Notice of Layoff. 

 

B.   Suspension: The Department Head, with prior approval of the City Manager, may 

suspend an employee without pay from his/her position at any time for cause, not to 

exceed three (3) working days in any one suspension or more than ten (10) working days 

in one fiscal year.  Such suspensions shall be reported immediately to the City Manager.  

The City Manager may suspend an employee at any time for cause for a period not to 

exceed thirty (30) working days in any fiscal year. 

 

C.   Demotion: The City Manager may demote an employee whose ability to perform the 

required duties of his/her position fall below standard or for disciplinary purposes.  No 

employee shall be demoted to a position for which he/she does not possess the minimum 

qualifications. 

 

D.   Reduction in Salary: The appointing authority may, with prior City Manager approval, 

within the minimum and maximum salary range for the position, reduce or decrease the 

salary level of an employee whose ability to perform the required duties of his/her 

position falls below standard, or for disciplinary purposes. 

 

E.   Discharge: An employee in the career service may be discharged for cause at any time by 

the City Manager.  Any employee who has been discharged shall receive a written 

statement of the reasons for such action at the time of discharge. 

 

F.      Cause for Discipline: Disciplinary action up to and including termination may be taken 

for any of the following: 

21 of 28







 

 22 

 

ARTICLE 27: PERSONNEL FILES 

 

An employee or employee’s representative, on presentation of written authorization from the 

employee, shall have access to the employee’s personnel file. The City shall furnish copies of all 

performance evaluation reports and letter of reprimand or warning to the employee prior to 

placement of such documents into the employee’s personnel file. The employee shall be required 

to acknowledge the receipt of any document entered into the employee’s personnel file without 

prejudice to subsequent arguments concerning the contents of such documents. 

 

 

ARTICLE 28: USE OF CITY VEHICLES / MILEAGE 

 

A. Employees may drive City vehicles home at the discretion of the supervisor or City 

Manager. 

 

B. Mileage Reimbursement: When authorized by the City for the employee to drive their 

private vehicle, the City will reimburse mileage at a rate equal to the standard rate 

recognized by the Internal Revenue Service. 

 

 

ARTICLE 29:  CATASTROPHIC LEAVE PROGRAM   

 

A. Regular full-time employees may voluntarily donate vacation or CTO hours to another 

regular employee based on the following criteria: 

 

1. To be eligible as a recipient, an employee must have a verifiable long-term illness or 

injury, e.g., cancer, heart attack, stroke, serious injury, etc., or death in the immediate 

family and must have exhausted all personal vacation, sick leave, and CTO, or will 

soon have exhausted such leave resulting in the employee being in a non-paid status. 

 

2. Donations must be made to a specified individual only. 

 

3. The person receiving the donated hours must have achieved regular status with the 

City. 

 

4. Donated vacation or CTO hours must be in increments of one (1) hour. Hours 

donated will be converted at the donor’s hourly rate and credited to the sick leave 

balance of the recipient by converting the dollar amount donated to the recipient’s 

hourly rate.  

 

 Example: Employee A is paid at ten dollars ($10) per hour and donates one hour to 

employee B who is paid at five dollars ($5) per hour. Employee B would be credited 

with two (2) hours of sick leave. Conversions for crediting will be rounded to the 

nearest one-half (1/2) hour increment. 

 

24 of 28



 

 23 

5. Once donated, vacation or CTO hours cannot be reclaimed by the donor. 

 

6. The maximum time that may be initially donated into an employee’s account is one 

thousand and forty (1040) hours. Additional time may be donated if the initial 

donation is exhausted to a maximum of one thousand and forty (1040) hours. To be 

eligible to receive more than the aggregate total of two thousand and eighty (2080) 

hours, there must be a favorable prognosis for recovery and a predictable date of 

return to work. 

 

7. In no event shall donated time have the effect of altering the rights of the City or the 

recipient relevant to employment, nor shall it extend or alter the limitations otherwise 

applicable to leaves of absence or sick leave. 

   

B. The Union shall be responsible for securing donations to sick leave accounts. All 

donations must be done in writing and include the dated signature of the donor on a form 

mutually agreed upon by the City and the Union. 

 

 

ARTICLE 30: FULL UNDERSTANDING MODIFICATION WAIVER 

 

A. The parties jointly represent that this MOU sets forth the full and entire understanding of 

the parties regarding the matters set forth herein.  

 

B. Except as specifically otherwise provided herein, it is agreed and understood that each 

party hereto voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives its rights and agrees that the other shall 

not be required to meet and confer with respect to any subject or matter covered herein, 

nor as to wages or fringe benefits during the period of the term of this Memorandum.  

The foregoing shall not preclude the parties hereto from meeting and conferring at any 

time during the term of this agreement with respect to any subject matter within the scope 

of the meeting and conferring for a proposed MOU between the parties to be effective on 

or after July 1, 2013.  

 

 

ARTICLE 31: SEVERABILTY OF PROVISIONS 

 

Should any provision of the MOU be declared illegal by final judgment of a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such invalidations of such provisions shall not invalidate the remaining portions 

thereof; and such remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of the 

MOU. 

 

 

ARTICLE 32: PREVAILING RIGHTS 

 

All matters within the scope of meeting and conferring that have previously been adopted been 

adopted through rules, regulations, ordinances, or resolutions which are not specifically 





.. 
" Appendix A 

City of Colfax - Salary Range Schedule FY2014 
July 1, 2014-June 30, 2015 

Step 

1 2 3 

Monthly 2,184.00 2,293.20 2,405.87 

Clerk Typist· Hourly 12.60 13.23 13.88 

Annual 26,208.00 27,518.40 28,870.40 

Monthly 3,704.13 3,889.60 4,085.47 

lead Mechanic· Hourly 21.37 22.44 23.57 

Annual 44,449.60 46,675.20 49,025.60 

Monthly 2,556.67 2,683.20 2,814.93 

Maintenance Worker ,. Hourly 14.75 15.48 16.24 

Annual 30,680.00 32,198.40 33,779.20 

Monthly 3,149.47 3,307.20 3,471.87 

Maintenance Worker II· Hourly 18.17 19.08 20.03 

Annual 37,793.60 39,686.40 41,662.40 

Monthly 2,889.47 3,033.33 3,185.87 

Operator in Training· Hourly 16.67 17.50 18.38 

Annual 34,673.60 36,400.00 38,230.40 

Monthly 3,868.80 4,061.20 4,264.00 

Operator II· Hourly 22.32 23.43 24.60 

Annual 46,425.60 48,734.40 51,168.00 

Monthly 4,368.00 4,588.13 4,816.93 

Operator III· Hourly 25.20 26.47 27.79 

Annual 52,416.00 55,057.60 57,803.20 

Monthly 4,586.40 4,816.93 5,057.87 

Chief Plant Operator· Hourly 26.46 27.79 29.18 

Annual 55,036.80 57,803.20 60,694.40 

Monthly 2,965.73 3,114.80 3,270.80 

Accounting Assistant· Hourly 17.11 17.97 18.87 

Annual 35,588.80 37,377.60 39,249.60 

Administrative Monthly 3,655.60 3,837.60 4,030.00 

Assistant/Community Hourly 21.09 22.14 23.25 

Development· Annual 43,867.20 46,051.20 48,360.00 

• Represented Position 

4 5 

2,527.20 2,655.47 

14.58 15.32 

30,326.40 31,865.60 

4,290.00 4,503.20 

24.75 25.98 

51,480.00 54,038.40 

2,958.80 3,106.13 

17.07 17.92 

35,505.60 37,273.60 

3,645.20 3,827.20 

21 .03 22.08 

43,742.40 45,926.40 

3,343.60 3,511.73 

19.29 20.26 

40,123.20 42,140.80 

4,477.20 4,699.07 

25.83 27.11 

53,726.40 56,388.80 

5,056.13 5,310.93 

29.17 30.64 

60,673.60 63,731.20 

5,309.20 6 ,3k. 
I 

30.63 .aJ...H 

63,710.40 , .,'" 

3,433.73 3,605.33 

3i> I bO 

'2.:ib. 

19.81 20.80 

41,204.80 43,264.00 

4,231.07 4,442.53 

24.41 25.63 

50,772.80 53,310.40 



APPENDIX “B” 

 

 

HEALTH AND WELFARE 

 

The Employer agrees to contribute into the Stationary Engineers Local 39 Health and Welfare 

Trust Fund, at its respective office in San Francisco, California, or such other designated place of 

payment as the Trustees of said Trust Fund may determine, the below listed amounts, per month, 

for each eligible employee as defined by this Agreement, for the purpose of providing such 

employees and his/her dependents with group life insurance, hospitalization, prescription drugs, 

medical, vision, and dental benefits, as are now in effect, or as may hereafter be specified by the 

Trustees of said Trust Fund. The Employer further agrees to accept, assume and be bound by all 

of the obligations imposed upon individual employers by that certain Trust Agreement referred to 

for convenience as the "Stationary Engineers Local 39 Health and Welfare Trust Agreement," as 

said Trust Agreement may now exist or may hereafter be amended (a copy of which has been 

delivered to the Employer herein and receipt of which is expressly acknowledged) and further 

agrees to be bound by any amendments or modifications, changes or mergers with respect to said 

Trust Agreement made by the parties hereto. Effective December 1, 2015, the monthly 

contribution shall be the amount of One Thousand Nine Hundred Forty Dollars and Zero Cents 

($1,940.00) plus a flat monthly contribution rate of Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) for life 

insurance.  

 

The above contributions shall be made on or before the tenth (10th) day of each month, for each 

employee employed for a period of not less than eighty (80) hours during the preceding calendar 

month.  

 

The undersigned further agrees that he or it does irrevocably designate and appoint the Employers 

mentioned in said Health and Welfare Trust as his or its attorneys-infact for the selection, 

removal and substitution of trustees as provided for in said Trust Agreements and as may be 

hereinafter provided by or pursuant to said Trust Agreements. 

 

In the event that the Trustees of the Stationary Engineers Local 39 Health and Welfare Trust 

determine that the current contribution amount or the amount referred to in this Agreement is 

insufficient to provide the benefits then in effect, the Employer herein agrees to pay such further 

amount as may be necessary in the decision of the Trustees to maintain the then current level of 

benefits for the life of the Agreement as determined by the Board of Trustees. 

 

In the event the individual Employer herein fails to pay the amounts of Trust Fund contributions 

due and owing for the period in which they are due and owing, the individual Employer shall pay, 

in addition to the amounts due as contributions, such additional liquidated damages and/or 

attorney's fees as are set forth in the Trust Agreement to which the individual Employer is bound.   

 

In the event of accident, or illness of any employee with ninety (90) days or more of employment, 

or in the event of a layoff of any employee with one hundred eighty (180) days or more of 

employment, the Employer will continue the monthly payments for the employee and his 

dependents for a period not to exceed three (3) months. 
 

28 of 28



 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

FOR THE MARCH 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:   Mark Miller,City Manager 

PREPARED By:  John Brownlee, Building Official 

DATE:  March 10, 2016 

SUBJECT:  Building Department Year End Report for 2015 

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:   FROM FUND:  

 

RECOMMENDED  ACTION:  Receive and file 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
 
In 2015, the Building Department  issued only 75 building permits.   This was a 33% decrease over the 112 
issued  in  2014. Of  these  permits,  59 were  residential  and  16 were  for  commercial  buildings.  The  total 
valuation of the permits  issued was $1,226,314.00. This value  is a 98%  increase over 2014 values.   Of this 
amount, $434,000.00 was for the new Dollar General store. 
 
The total revenue for permits and plan reviews was $33,999.08. This was an increase of 15% over 2014. 
In addition to building permits, 14 sewer lateral inspection permits were issued. There was a 32% decrease 
in the issuance of these permits from the 44 issued in 2014.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

1 of 1



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE MARCH 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: March 17, 2016 
SUBJECT: Proclaim April 2016 as Child Abuse Prevention Month 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 09-2016 Proclaiming April 2016 as “Child Abuse Prevention 
Awareness Month” in the City of Colfax. 

 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY:  
  
In 2014, Placer County investigated over 3,000 reports of child abuse and neglect.  Of those reports 3% of 
the allegations – 105 in total – were from the City of Colfax. 
 
The majority of child abuse cases stem from situations and conditions that are preventable.  KidsFirst was 
established in 1989 as a private, non-profit organization with a mission to end child abuse and neglect. The 
organization envisions an environment where all children live in a safe, healthy, and nurturing home. They 
are dedicated to helping families by providing them with the tools needed to cope with difficult life 
circumstances before they become overwhelming.  With counseling and family resource centers in Auburn 
and Roseville, their programs target the most vulnerable children, families, and neighborhoods. They 
strengthen families by educating, advocating and changing lives through programs which include Wellness, 
Information and Referral, and Education and Outreach. 
 
The City can support the efforts of KidsFirst by proclaiming April 2016 as Child Abuse Prevention Awareness 
Month and urging all citizens to join KidsFirst and it engaged partners to support each family’s efforts to 
keep themselves and their children safe, healthy and in a nurturing environment. 
 
Other ways to support their efforts include wearing a blue ribbon on April 8th and displaying a pinwheel 
garden in April to serve as a positive reminder that as a community we can treat and prevent child abuse 
and neglect and keep children safe.   
 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Resolution 09-2016 

ITEM 3E
1 of 2



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

2ÅÓÏÌÕÔÉÏÎ Ο 09-2016 
 

$%#,!2).' !02), ςπρφ !3 Ȱ#(),$ !"53% 02%6%.4)/. !7!2%.%33 -/.4(ȱ 
IN THE CITY OF COLFAX 

 

WHEREAS, In 2014, Placer County investigated 3,286 reports of child abuse and neglect, 
affecting an average of 2 children per household with 105 of those allegations (3% of allegations) from 
the City of  Colfax; and 
 

WHEREAS, All adults and caregivers have a responsibility, as neighbors, community members 
and citizens of the community to help create healthy, safe and nurturing environments for children 
and youth; and 
 

WHEREAS, Safe and healthy childhoods help produce confident, successful and independent 
adults; and 
 

WHEREAS, Child abuse and neglect often occurs when people find themselves in isolated or 
stressful situations, without community resources; and 
 

WHEREAS, The majority of child abuse cases stem from situations and conditions that are 
preventable when communities are supportive, active and engaged; and 

 

WHEREAS, Child abuse and neglect can be reduced by making sure every family has the 
support it needs and deserves to raise their children in a healthy environment; and 

 

WHEREAS, Effective prevention programs succeed because of meaningful connections and 
partnerships created between agencies, schools, faith-based organizations, law enforcement agencies, 
ÁÎÄ ÔÈÅ ÂÕÓÉÎÅÓÓ ÃÏÍÍÕÎÉÔÙȠ ÁÎÄ 0ÌÁÃÅÒ #ÏÕÎÔÙȭÓ ÃÏÌÌÁÂÏÒÁÔÉÖÅ ÉÓ ÁÍÏÎÇ ÔÈÅ ÍÏÓÔ ÅÆÆÅÃÔÉÖÅ ÉÎ ÔÈÅ 
country; and 

 

WHEREAS, For 27 years, KidsFirst, Counseling and Family Resource Centers, has functioned as 
a Child Abuse Prevention Council for Placer County, with two locations strategically located in 
Roseville and Auburn to serve Western/Southern Placer County; 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that April 
2016 is Child Abuse Prevention Awareness Month, urging all citizens to join KidsFirst as they support 
ÅÁÃÈ ÆÁÍÉÌÙȭÓ ÅÆÆÏÒÔÓ ÔÏ ËÅÅÐ ÔÈÅÍÓÅÌÖÅÓ ÁÎÄ ÔÈÅÉÒ ÃÈÉÌÄÒÅÎ ÓÁÆÅȟ ÈÅÁÌÔÈÙ ÁÎÄ ÉÎ Á ÎÕÒÔÕÒÉÎÇ 
environment.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on 
the 23rd day of March, 2016 by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                          ___________________________________ 
       Tom Parnham, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 3E
2 of 2



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

FOR THE MARCH 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Staff  

DATE: March 17, 2016 

SUBJECT: Continuing Medical Marijuana Ordinance City Council Discussion 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  N/A FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review the general policy areas covering the Medical Marijuana Dispensaries 
section of a draft ordinance.  Provide direction to staff in conjunction with the ordinance and the 
November 8, 2016 Election, at which time a Measure will be placed on the Ballot. 

 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
 

Consistent with Council direction, staff is moving to prepare a comprehensive regulatory ordinance and fee 
schedule for the Council to consider. The intent is to have a measure that can be placed on the ballot for 
approval or disapproval by the City’s residents at the November election.  At tonight’s meeting, staff is 
requesting preliminary direction from Council on the Marijuana Dispensaries section to include in a 
comprehensive ordinance.  Delivery, Use and Revenue Control of Marijuana the in the City of Colfax will be 
consider at a following City Council meeting. 

 
 

Attachments:  Part 2 of Proposed Draft Ordinance - Dispensaries 
 

ITEM6A
1 of 9



 

  
Page 1 

 
  

 

CITY OF COLFAX 

 
3/23/2016 Draft ORDINANCE No. 528 

Part Two THE OPERATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX AMENDING COLFAX 

MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 17.162 COVERING CULTIVATION, (USE, 

AND DELIVERY OF MARIJUANA to be considered next )AND THE 

OPERATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES IN THE CITY 

OF COLFAX 

 Chapter 17.162  continued–Section for review:  MEDICAL 

MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES  

Section 17.162.090 Marijuana Dispensary -Permit Required to Operate.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in, to conduct or carryon (or to permit to be 

engaged in, conducted or carried on) in or upon his or her Property located within the City, the 

operation of a Marijuana Dispensary unless an Applicant has first obtained and continues to 

maintain in full force and effect a valid Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit issued by the 

City for that Property pursuant to this Chapter.  

 

Section 17.162.100 Imposition of Medical Marijuana a Dispensary Permit Fees. Every 

application for Marijuana Dispensary permit shall be accompanied by an application fee (in 

an amount established by resolution of the City Council) at an amount calculated to recover 

the City's full cost of reviewing and issuing the Marijuana Dispensary permit) and the filing of 

a complete required application pursuant to this Chapter. The application fee shall not include 

the standard City fees for fingerprinting, photographing, and background check costs and shall 

be in addition to any other business license fee or permit fee imposed by this Code or other 

governmental agencies.  

ITEM6A



 

  
Page 2 

 
  

Section 17.162.110 Limitations on the Permitted Location of a Storefront Collective Dispensary.  

A. Permissible Zoning for Marijuana Dispensaries.  

Marijuana Dispensaries may only be permitted and located on parcels within the City which are 

not zoned residential.  A conditional use permit is required for the operation of any Marijuana 

Dispensary. 

B. Storefront Locations. Marijuana Dispensary shall only be located in a visible store-front type 

ground-floor location which provides good public views of the Dispensary entrance, its windows, 

and the entrance to the Storefront Collective Dispensary premises from a public street.  

C. Maximum Number of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries Allowed Permits. Notwithstanding the 

above, the City may not issue a total of more than three (3) Marijuana Dispensary permits at any one 

time and, subject to the amortization allowance period contained within the uncodified portions of 

the City ordinance adopting amendments to this chapter, no more than three (3) permitted or 

allowed Marijuana Dispensaries may legally operate within the City, including specifically those 

dispensaries which are open and operating in a legal nonconforming manner at the time of the 

adoption of the ordinance amending this Chapter.  

Section 17.162.120 Marijuana Dispensary  - Permit Application Requirements.  

A. Application Filing. A complete City of Colfax Permit application submittal packet is required for 

a Marijuana Dispensary permit and it shall be submitted (along with all required fees) and all other 

information and materials required by this Chapter in order to file a complete application for a 

Marijuana Dispensary Permit for a specific Property. All applications for Marijuana Dispensary 

permits shall be filed with the Community Development Department using forms provided by the 

City. It is the responsibility of the Applicant to provide all of the information required for approval of 

the permit. The application shall be signed by a Management Member under penalty of perjury.  

ITEM6A
3 of 9



 

  
Page 3 

 
  

B. Eligibility for Filing. If a Marijuana Dispensary permit application is filed by a non-owner of the 

Property, it shall also be accompanied by a written affirmation from the Property owner expressly 

allowing the Applicant and Management Member to apply for the Permit and acknowledging the 

Applicant's right to use and occupy the Property for the intended Medical Marijuana Dispensary use.  

c. Filing Date. The filing date of any application shall be the date when the City officially receives 

the last submission of information or materials required in compliance with the submittal 

requirements specified herein and the application has been deemed complete in writing by the City.  

D. Effect of Incomplete Filing. Upon notification that an application submittal is incomplete, the 

Applicant shall be granted an extension of time to submit all materials required to complete the 

application within thirty (30) days. If the application remains incomplete in excess of thirty (30) days 

the application shall be deemed withdrawn and new application submittal shall be required in order 

to proceed with the subject request. 

  

E. Filing Requirements -Proposed Operational Plan. In connection with a permit application, an 

Applicant for a Marijuana Dispensary permit shall provide a detailed "Operations Plan" for the 

proposed Dispensary and, upon issuance of the Marijuana Dispensary permit by the City, shall operate 

the Marijuana Dispensary in accordance with the Operations Plan, as approved, at all times. A 

required Operations Plan shall consist of at least the following:  

. Site Plan and Floor Plan. A Marijuana Dispensary application shall have a proposed site plan 

and floor plan which shows a lobby waiting area at the entrance to the Marijuana Dispensary used to 

receive qualified patients or primary caregivers, and a separate and secure designated area for 

dispensing medical marijuana to qualified patients or designated primary caregivers members of the 

Collective. The primary entrance shall be located and maintained clear of barriers, landscaping and 

similar obstructions so that it is clearly visible from public streets, sidewalks or site driveways.  

. Storage. A Marijuana Dispensary shall have suitable locked storage on the premises, 

identified and approved as a part of the operational security plan for the after-hours storage of 

medical marijuana.  

. Security Plans. A Marijuana Dispensary shall provide a plan to provide adequate security on 

the premises of the Dispensary which shall be maintained in accordance with the Dispensary security 

plan approved by the Placer Sheriff representative and as reviewed by the Staff Hearing Officer. This 

plan shall include provisions for adequate lighting and alarms in order to insure the safety of persons 

and to protect the premises from theft. All security guards used by dispensaries shall be licensed and 

employed by a state licensed private-party operator security company retained by the Marijuana 

Dispensary and each security guard used shall possess a valid state Department of Consumer Affairs 

"Security Guard Card
u 

at all times.  

. Security Cameras. The Security Plan shall show how the Property will be monitored at all 

times by closed-circuit television for security purposes. The camera and recording system must be of 

adequate quality, color rendition and resolution to allow the ready identification of an individual on 

or adjacent to the Property. The recordings shall be maintained at the Property for a period of not less 

than thirty (30) days.  

. Alarm Systems. The Operations Plan shall provide that professionally monitored burglary 

and fire alarm systems shall be installed and such systems shall be maintained in good working 

condition within the Marijuana Dispensary at all times.  

. Emergency Contact. A Operations Plan shall provide the Placer Sheriff representative with 

the name, cell phone number, and facsimile number of a Management Member to act as an onsite 

community relations staff person to whom the City may provide notice of any operating problems.  

ITEM6A
4 of 9



 

  
Page 4 

 
  

六. Public Nuisance. The Operations Plan shall provide for the Management Members of the 

Marijuana Dispensary to take all reasonable steps to discourage and correct objectionable conditions 

that constitute a public or  

private nuisance in parking areas, sidewalks, alleys and  

areas surrounding the premises and adjacent properties  

during business hours if directly related to the patrons of  

the subject Storefront Collective Dispensary.  

 Loitering Adjacent to a Dispensary. The Operations Plan shall provide that the Management 

Members will take all reasonable steps to reduce loitering by customers in public areas, 

sidewalks, alleys and areas surrounding the Property and adjacent premises during the 

business hours of the Marijuana Dispensary.  

 Trash, Litter, Graffiti. The Operations Plan shall provide that the Management Members 

will keep area which includes the sidewalks adjoining the Dispensary plus ten  

 (10) feet beyond property lines (as well as any parking lots under the control of the 

Dispensary) clear of litter, debris, and trash.  

 Removal of Graffiti. The Operations Plan shall provide a method for the Management 

Members to promptly remove all graffiti from the Property and parking lots under the control 

of the Marijuana Dispensary within 72 hours of its appearance.  

F. Filing Requirements -Information Regarding Marijuana Dispensary Management. A Marijuana 

Dispensary Applicant shall also provide the following Management Member and Collective 

information as part of a Storefront Collective Dispensary application:  

1. The name, address, telephone number, title and function(s) of each Management Member;  

2. For each Management Member, a fully legible copy of one  

 
(1) valid government issued form of photo identification, such as a state driver's license or 

identification card. Acceptable forms of government issued identification include, but are not 

limited to, driver's license or photo identity cards issued by the state Department of Motor 

Vehicles (or equivalent) that meet REAL ID benchmarks, a passport issued by the United 

States or by a foreign government, U.S. Military ID cards (active duty or retired military and 

their dependents) or a Permanent Resident card. 

Section 17.162.130 Criteria for Review of Marijuana Dispensary Applications by the City Staff 

Hearing Officer.  

A. Decision on Application. Upon an application for a Marijuana Dispensary permit being 

deemed complete, the Staff Hearing Officer shall either issue a Marijuana Dispensary permit, 

issue a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit with conditions in accordance with this 

Chapter, or deny a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit. 

ITEM6A
5 of 9



 

  
Page 5 

 
  

B. Criteria for Issuance. The Staff Hearing Officer, or the City Council on appeal, shall 

consider the following criteria in determining whether to grant or deny a Medical Marijuana 

Dispensary permit:  

1. That the Marijuana Dispensary permit and the operation of the proposed Dispensary will be 

consistent with the intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 Statutes for 

providing medical marijuana to qualified patients and primary caregivers and the provisions 

of this Chapter and with the Municipal Code, including the application submittal and 

operating requirements herein.  

2. That the proposed location of the Marijuana Dispensary is not identified by the Placer County 

Sheriff as an area of increased or high crime activity.  

3. For those applicants who have operated other Marijuana Dispensaries within the City, that 

there have not been significant numbers of calls for police service, crimes or arrests in the 

area of the applicants former location.  

4. That issuance of a Marijuana Dispensary permit for the Dispensary size requested is 

appropriate to meet needs of community for access to medical marijuana.  

5. That issuance of the Dispensary permit would serve needs of City residents within a 

proximity to this location.  

6. That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter or any local or state law, 

statute, rule, or regulation and no significant nuisance issues or problems are likely or 

anticipated and that compliance with other applicable requirements of the City's Zoning 

Ordinance will be accomplished.  

7. That the Dispensary's Operations Plan, its site plan, its floor plan, the proposed hours of 

operation, and a security plan have incorporated features necessary to assist in reducing 

potential crime-related problems and as specified in the operating requirements section. 

These features may include, but are not limited to, security onsite; procedure for allowing 

entry; openness to surveillance and control of the premises; the perimeter, and surrounding 

properties; reduction of opportunities, 

ITEM6A
6 of 9



 

  
Page 6 

 
  

congregating and obstructing public ways and neighboring property; illumination of 

exterior areas; and limiting furnishings and features that encourage loitering and 

nuisance behavior.  

8. That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into the Dispensary security plan or 

consistently taken to successfully control the establishment's patrons' conduct resulting in 

disturbances, vandalism, crowd control inside or outside the premises, traffic control 

problems, marijuana use in public, or creation of a public or private nuisance, or interference 
of the operation of another business.  

9. That the Dispensary is likely to have no potentially adverse affect on the health, peace, or 

safety of persons living or working in the surrounding area, overly burden a specific 

neighborhood, or contribute to a public nuisance and that the Dispensary will generally not 

result in repeated nuisance activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug activity, 

marijuana use in public, harassment of passerby, excessive littering, excessive loitering, 

illegal parking, excessive loud noises, especially late at night or early in the morning hours, 
lewd conduct, or police detentions or arrests.  

10. That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition imposed by a City issued permit, or 

any provision of any other local, or state law, regulation, or order, or any condition imposed 

by permits issued in compliance with those laws will not be violated.  

11. That the Applicant has not made a false statement of material fact or has omitted to state a 

material fact in the application for a permit.  

12. That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business acts 

or practices with respect to the operation of another business within the City. 

C. Maintenance of Appropriate Collective Records Regarding Cultivation and 

Compliance  

1. Cultivation Records. Every permitted Marijuana Dispensary shall maintain on-site (i.e., at the 

Property designated for the operation of the Marijuana Dispensary) the medical marijuana 

cultivation records of the Marijuana Dispensary. These records shall be signed under penalty of 

perjury by each Management Member responsible for the cultivation and shall identify the 

location or locations at which the Marijuana Dispensary s medical marijuana is being cultivated. 

Such records shall also record the total number of marijuana plants cultivated or stored at each 

cultivation location. The Storefront Collective Dispensary shall also maintain an inventory record 

documenting the dates and amounts of medical marijuana cultivated or stored at the Dispensary 

Property, if any, as well as the daily amounts of Medical Marijuana distributed from the 

permitted Dispensary. 

 
2. Financial Records. The Dispensary shall also maintain a written accounting record or ledger 

of all cash, receipts, credit card transactions, reimbursements,  

 

(including any in-kind contributions), and any and all reasonable compensation for services 

provided by the Management Members or other members of the Marijuana Dispensary, as 

well as records of all operational expenditures and costs incurred by Marijuana Dispensary in 

ITEM6A
7 of 9



 

  
Page 7 

 
  

accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and standards typically applicable 

to business records.  

4. Dispensary Record Retention Period. The records required above by subparagraphs (1), 

(2), and (3) of this subsection shall be maintained by the Medical Marijuana Dispensary for a 

period of three (3) years and shall be made available to the City upon a written request.   

Section 17.162.140 City Access to and Inspection of Required Storefront Collective Dispensary 

Records.  

ITEM6A
8 of 9



 

  
Page 8 

 
  

A duly designated Placer County Sheriff or Community Development Department representative 

may enter and shall be allowed to inspect the premises of every Marijuana Dispensary as well as the 

financial and membership records of the Collective required by this Chapter between the hours of 

eight o'clock (8:00) A.M. and six o'clock (6:00) P.M., or at any appropriate time to ensure 

compliance and enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter, except that the inspection and copying 

of the private medical records of a Marijuana Dispensary shall be made available to the Placer 

County Sheriff only pursuant to a properly executed search warrant or inspection warrant by a court 

of competent jurisdiction, or a court order for the inspection of such records.  

It shall be unlawful for any property owner, landlord, lessee, Medical Marijuana Dispensary member 

or Management Member or any other person having any responsibility over the operation of the 

Marijuana Dispensary to refuse to allow, impede, obstruct or interfere with an inspection of the 

Marijuana Dispensary or the required records thereof.  

 
 

 (…REMAINING SECTIONS OF MARIJUANA ORDINANCE to be 

considered at next Council Meeting) 

ITEM6A


	00A 160323 Agenda
	03A 160309 Minutes
	03B Cash Summary February
	2016-08 Staff Report Cash Summary Feb 2016
	160323 Cash Summary Data February

	03C MOU Union
	160323 SR Union MOU authoriz. 
	Resolution 08-2016 MOU Local 39 Union 
	Local 39 MOU Final - 2016-2020 complete

	03D 2015 BUILDING DEPT. YEAR END REPORT TO COUNCIL  - Copy
	03E Child Abuse Prevention Month
	160323 SR Child Abuse Prevention Month
	Resolution 09-2016 Child Abuse Prevention Proclamation

	06A Marijuana Ordinance Dispensary Component
	2016-03-23 SR Medical Marijuana Ordinance part 2 
	2016-03-17 draft Dispensary




